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1 BY MR. BROWN: ~ 

2 Q. Dr. Eisch. let's talk fur awhile about 
3 polyhydroxies. 
4 You relied on the the dictionary and your own 

I 5 experience to arrive at a definition fur polyhydroxy: is 
6 that corr~t? ~ 
7 A. Those would be-- the dictionary was ex.emplary. I . 

. 
8 looked at many other documents, textbooks and so on. yes. 

I 
. 

9 But, yes, that would be exemplary and my . 

10 experience too, yes. . 

-
ll Q. But In tams of your actual testimony, the only --

12 exhibit that you specifically referred to with respect to 

l3 polyhydroxies to support your position was a dictionary 
14 reference, I believe, from Hawley's; was it? ~ 
15 A. That's correct -: 

Did you survey the other technical dictionaries or 
-: 

16 Q. -: 
---

17 references to determine whether they all say that a 
18 polyhydroxy has three or more hydroxyl units? 

~ 
19 A. I looked at a number of dictionaries, but I tended 

-: . 
20 to concentrate.not on what you what call chemical 

-: 
' 
' 

21 technological dictionaries, but on chemical dictionaries. 
·-
-, 

Q. And in your review of those chemical dictionaries, ' 22 . 
23 isn't it true that in substantial number of them. define ~ 24 polyhydroxy as containing two or more hydroxyl units? ,_ 

15 A. No, it's not true, in my impression. of what I 

:~ 
-:. 

Page29 
i 

1 surveyed. -. 
2 Q. Let's tum to Exlnoit 319. 
3 A (The witness complied.) 
4 Q. Aie you fami1i.1r with the dictionary of ~ 
5 biochemistry and tmlecular biology? < 

6 A Yes, I think I've seen the title. ~ 

7 Q. Okay. Focus in on polyhydroxy, would }'Oll agree 
8 with me Dr. Eisch, that this reference defines ·' ~ 

9 polyhydroxy as containing two or tmre hydroxyl units? 1-
10 A Yes, but I would add to the fact that this is not a 
11 chemistry dictionary. It's a biochemistry and biology 
12 dictionary, which I would not take as authoritative. ~ 

13 Q. But for people who are working with bones, would ~ 
' 14 you agree that bone biology is in the area covered by 
~ 15 this textbook, this reference book? 

16 A I would say to that that people in whatever field, 
~ 17 they're dealing with chemical terms ought to seek 

18 chemical definitions. ~ 
19 Q. So I don't think it would be appropriate for a 

~ 
20 person working in the field ofbone biology to rely on ~ 
21 this reference? ~ 
22 A I don't think so, for chemical answers. ~ 
23 Q. Let's look at the cxlnoits 321. ~ 

~ 
24 A (The witness complied.) :~ 

- 25 Q. Aie you familiar with W ebstc::r's dictionary? 
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A Yes, in its many manifestations. A What testimony are you talking about? FJ Q. Let's see what Webster's dictionary has to say 2 Q. On polyhydroxy, the tcm polyhydroxy. 
3 about polyhydroxyee. 3 A Well. as I see. in the use in the patent, I was not 
4 And am I correct that it refers to polyhydroxy 4 clear from the intrinsic evidence on what it ought to m 
5 that is containing more than one hydroxyl group in the 5 mean. [ 

['' 
6 molecule? 6 Q. All right Well, let's turn to the '558 patent, 

-: 
1\ 

7 A Yes, but I would add that if you look at the word 7 Trial Exhibit 175 at column 6,lines 53 to 68. f 
8 poly, wbich means many, I don't think two in any language 8 Do you have that in front of you, doctor'? 

11 

9 is considered many. 9 A (The witness complied.) 
10 And so I would not-- anct I certainly wouldn't 10 Yes, I can see it here. 
11 go into a collegiate dictionary to get a definitive II Q. Now, am I correct that it contains the language 
12 active answc::r on chemical nomenclature. 12 polyhydroxy compound is selected from the group 
13 Q. Now, when you testified about the meaning of 13 consisting of acyclic polyhydric alcohols, non reducing ~\ 14 polyhydroxy, you didn't allude to the patent as a basis : 14 sugars, sugar alcohols, sugar acids, monosaccharides ~ 
15 for your definition ofpolyhydroxy; did you? 15 disaccharides, water soluble or water dispersible, j~ 

~ 
16 A No, I did not 16 oligosaccharide, polysacharides, polya.lkyiene glycols, { 

17 Q. Is that because you didn't rely on the language in 17 and ~e thereof, correct? ~~ 
18 the patent in formulating your opinion as to what the 18 Q. Now, you testified that we can all agree that a 
19 tam polyhydroxy means? 19 glycol means two hydroxyl groups; is that correct? 
20 A Well, I think if you're looking fur the meaning of 20 A A glycol. with the proviso that in calling 
21 a word in chemistry, it should be in an authorit~.tive 21 something a glycol. you are naming the two hydroxyl group ~ 

22 context 22 as being the most prominent functinal group in the 
23 And naturally a patent is the product of some 23 molecule. 
24 people writing it and whether they have based themselves 24 Q. And would you agree that the tam polyalkylene 
25 on authoritative sources in using their language, I 25 glycol refers to compounds that may contain two hydroxyl ~ 

' ,, 
~· ~ 

~ 
y 
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~ 1 wouldn't know a priori, and so thc::refure I would always 1 groups and only two hydroxyl groups? :::: 
' 

2 refer to some authoritative outside source in getting the 2 A It may refc::r to that That is in the usage that is j 
3 meaning of that word. 3 fostered by Osteotech. Yes, that is the usage. 

I§ 
4 Q. So you would look first to an outside authoritative 4 Q. Now, you gave - let me rephrase the question. ~ 
5 source to interpret a tcnn in the patent rather than to 5 THE COURT: Well, that isn't the question that :-

·•. 
6 the patent its~ right? 6 was asked; is it? ~ 

7 A No, I didn't say that. I said if you wanted to 7 That isn't the answer to the question that was' 
8 find out the meaning of the word- I'm not talking about 8 asked. So ask it again. 
9 construing a patent now. I'm talking about the meaning 9 MR BROWN: Allright 

10 of the word. And that is diffi:reo:t than constroing. 10 BYMRBROWN: ~ 
I certainly am construing a patent, look at ll Q. You would agree that polyailcylene glycols may 

·. 
11 

~ 12 the patent first, yes, sir. 12. include two and only two hydroxyl units; correct? 
13 Q. In connection with your definition ofpolyhydroxy, l3 A As that term is used, yes. 
14 did you look at the patent? 14 Q. As that term is used by you and by others; correct? ,. -15 A Yes, I did 15 A As I say, I have trouble with the terminology ~ 
16 Q. And did you construe the tcnn polyhydroxy based on 16 polyalkylene glycols. As I think I showed to at least my .; 
17 your review of the patent? 17 satisfaction yesterday, it is a vague term and when it ' 
18 A Well, after looking at the intrinsic evidence in 18 comes right down to it, it is an incorrect term for the 
19 the claims and the patent and even the trial history of 19 class of compounds which people wbo use it seem to be 
20 the patent, which would be the intrinsic evidence, -one 20 refc:rring to. 
21 can in doubt tmn to extrinsic evidence, I lUldc::rstand, 21 Q. All right But there are people in this field who 
22 and that is where one would resort to chemical 22 use the tc:rm polyethylene glycol; correct? 
'.3 dictionaries to help one in one's understanding. 23 A By my patent search, maybe two percent 
24 Q. But in_ your testimony you did not direct us to any 24 Q. And ammg the polyethylene glycols are compounds 
25 intrinsic evidence, as you used that term; correct? 25 that contain two and only two hydroxyl units; correct? 
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1.~ 1 A Yes. I than two. 
2 Q. Then it follows that the group ofpolyhydroxy 2 And then a certain subclass of polyalkylene 

r ' 3 compounds idmtified in Claim 4 would include at least 3 glycols would have two. And the rest. I think, are 

i 4 some compounds that contain two and .only two hydroxyl 4 multiple. 
5 groups; correct? 5 Q. So would you agree with me that the patent itself 
6 A Well. sir, I think -- 6 refers to those compounds, that is compounds containing I 7 Q. Can you answer that simply yes or no? 7 two and only two hydroxy groups, is as polyhydroxy . 

8 A I want to explain my answer. I don't agree with 8 compounds? . 

9 it, and I would like to explain it. 9 A. Well, I would - no, I would not agree with you, ,, 
10 Q. May I have a yes or no first? 10 sir. 
11 A No, I don't agree with it. I gave it your no-- 11 Q. All right, so when you read the word polyhydroxy i~ 

12 THE COURT: But that isn't what he asked you. 12 compound includes ethylene glycol, you've acknowledged fi 

I 13 Ask the question again. 13 that ethylene glycol contains two hydroxyl groups; . 

14 MR. BROWN: Yes, your Honor. 14 correct? . 

IS BY MR. BROWN: 15 A. May I explain it? I 16 Q. Am I correct that the group ofpolyhydroxy 16 Q. Yes or no, doctor. 
17 compounds idmtified in Claim 4 includes at least some 17 A. It does contain two hydroxyis. 
18 compounds that contain two and only two hydroxyl groups? 18 Q. And isn't it clear from the specification, the 
19 A. And you're referring to, sir, the -· which terms? 19 passage that we've read, that the author is ref~g to 
20 Q. The polyalkylene glycol term? 20 ethylene glycol as a polyhydroxy compound? 
21 A. As it stands there, yes. 21 A. Yes, it is true, but r-
22 Q. So it is your construction of the patent claim that 22 Q. Dr. , thank you. 
23 the term polyhydroxy compound includes polyalkylene 23 A. I would like to explain that. ~ 

24 glycols, some of which contain two and only two hydroxyl 24 Q. If you think that followup is necessary, I'm sure 
25. units; correct? 25 counsel for Gensci will do so. 
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A No, sir, that is not my construction. 1 A Okay. ~ 
2 Q. Let's tum to the specification of'558 patent to 2 Q. If your definition ofpolyhydroxy wc:re adopted, ~ -: 

3 see how the term is used there. 3 that is. a compound having three or more hydroxyl groups, <: 

4 Did you look at the specification of the '558 4 can you identify fur us, which of the compounds in that 
5 patent to see how the term is used? 5 passage would have to be deleted from the patent? 
6 A Yes, sir. 6 A Ethylene gl}'col, diethylene glycol, triethylene 
7 Q. Let's look at Exhibit 175, column 4, lines 2 to 14. 7 glycol, one, two propanediol and then the polyethylene 
8 A (The witness complies.) 8 ·glycols. 
9 Q. Do you see in that passage, Dr. Eisch. reference to 9 Q. Thank you, Dr. Eisch. 

10 specific polyhydroxy compounds? 10 Now, are you fuDiliar with the term 
11 A Yes, I do. 11 polysaccharides? 
12 Q. That passage liSts as series ofpolyhydroxy 12 A Yes, lam. 
13 compounds, beginning at about line 2 and cxtenting 13 Q. How do you define the term? 
14 through line 14; correct? 14 A. Polysaccharide is a union of many monosaccharide ~ 

' 15 A Yes. sir. 15 units through the loss ofwatc:r. ~ 

< 
16 Q. Now, can you list .for me in that passage those 16 Q. Can you tell me how many carbon atoms are found in 
17 compounds that would contain two and only two hydroxyl 17 poly saccharides? 
18 units? 18 A Well, it depends on which units you're talking 
19 A Yes, I could. 19 about 
20 Q. Would you please do so. 20 The most common unit in the monosaccharide is 
21 A Starting with ethylene glycol, that would have two, 21 based upon glucose, six carbon atoms. ~ 

22 diethylene glycol would have two, triethylene glycol 22 Q. And how many units are required for it to be a 
23 would have two, propanediol would have two -· 23 polysaccharide? 
24 Q. How about erythritol at all? 24 A Well, there's a little, in contradistinction from .·. ,. 

' 25 A. No, that has four. And the next one also has more 25 other alcohols, fur example, we talk about Mono ~~ . 

_, 
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saccharides, disaccharides, trisaccharides. One even 
hears tetrasaccharides, and somewhere in there one 

J switches over to the general name oligosaccharide, which 
4 may take you up to t.c:n or twenty units. 
5 And then beyond that you are into 
6 polysaccharides. 
7 Q. So would you agree with me that polysaccharides 
8 have and always have zmre than 18 carbons? 
9 A Yes, sir. 

10 Q. Let's tum to Claim 4 of the '558 patent, Exlnbit 
11 175. 
12 A (The witness complies.) 
13 Q. Am I correct that Claim 4 on the '58 8 patent lists 
14 cc:rtain of the po1yhydroxy compotm.ds as carriers? 
15 A Yes, sir. 
16 Q. And am:mg the compotm.ds it lists as carriers are 
17 polysaccharides; correct? 
18 A Yes, sir. 
19 Q. You've told us that polysaccharides always contain 
20 trore than eighteen carbon atoms; correct? 
21 A Yes, sir. 
22 Q. But you testified that in your view the term 
23 po1yhydroxy is limited to compotm.ds containing two to 
24 eighteen carbon atoms; correct? 
25 A Yes, sir. 

Page39 

1 Q. So tm.dcr your view, the category of polysaccharides 
2 contained in Claim 4 literally would be stticken from the 
3 claim? 
4 A If it is so construed, that's right. 
5 Q. Similarly, would you agree that tmst polyalkylene 
6 glycOls contain more than eighteen carbon atoms? 
7 A Yes, sir. 
8 Q. And if your view were to prevail, tmst polyalkylene 
9 glycols covered from Claim 4 would be sttickc:n from the 

10 claim? 
11 A Yes, sir. 
12 Q. Let's talk about the term liquid for awhile, 
13 Dr. Eisch. 
14 You've testified that pluronic in water is a 
IS gel, not a liquid; is that correct? 
16 A Yes, sir. 
17 Q. Am I correct that during your testim:my on the term 
18 liquid, you did not cite to any tecboical references that 
19 contained definitions that supported your construction? 
20 A Yes, sir. I did not give any cxfu.oits in support 
21 of that definition. 
22 Q. Are you familiar with the term paste? 
23 A Yes, sir. 

~ Q. How do you use the term paste? 

2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 

. 17 

18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

Q. Do you normally think of paste as a liquid? 
A No. 
Q. More viscous than a liquid? 
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A Well, it has a number of things. It's not I 
transparent, it is note easily flowable. : 
Q. How about - how does it compare in viscosity to a 

1
; 

gel? 1 

A Well, depends on how firm the paste is. If it were 1!:: 

very firm and could stand on its own with a little . 
quivc:ring like a gel, I guess it would be then a : 
comparisOIL But you can think of paste that don't · 
resemble gels closely. _· 
Q. ~d puddy _rmre or less viscus than paste? ~: 
A Is lt rrore VISCUS? ~: 

Q. More or less. . ~~ 
A What do you mean? Well, depends if you get a very ~ 
stiff paste and the puddy, they might be ~ 
indistinguishable. These are vague terms. i 
Q. Gel, puddy, paste? ~ 

A No, gel is not vague term. Puddy and paste that ~ 
you bring up are. ~-

Q. Well, you do you think of puddy and paste being 
trore or less viscus than gel? 
A It depends on their consistency. 
Q. So it could be - they could be zmre viscous than 
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1 gel or they could be less viscous? 
2 A Yes. 
3 Q. You've testified that pluronic in water does not 
4 flow; correct? 
5 . A I'm sorry? 
.6 Q. You testified that a pluronic water mixture does 
7 notflow? 
8 A And in so doing, I've always specified a 
9 temperature at which that did not occur. 

10 Q. Atroomtemperatore? 
11 A That's right. 
12 .. Q. You concluded that because plmonic and water at 
13 room temperatnre does not flow, it's a gel rather than a 
14 liquid? 
15 A Yes, sir. 
16 Q. Have yOU looked at what the patent says about the 
17 temlliquid? 
18 A Which patent, sir? 
19 Q. The '558, fur example. 
20 A Would yOU direct me to what you want me to look at? 
21 Q. Well. I'm asking you in general terms in your study 
22 ofthe '558 patent, did you fucus on the language in 
23 either the specification or the claims to give yOU 

24 guidance as to how to constroe the term liquid? 
25 A I cc:rtainly have examined the term liquid, yes. 11.5 A I use it if I'm putting things in a picture book. 
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Q. Would you agree that it did not furm the basis fur 
2 your testimony as to what the term means? 
3 A. I don't undc:rstand your question. 
4 Q. Well. you've defined liquid for us. Was that on 
5 the basis ofhow the patent used the tc:mJ.Iiquid or how 
6 you and authoritative references used the term liquid? 
7 A. That would be extrinsic evidence. I cc:rtainly did 
8 examine how, what infunnation. ifany, the patent gave me 
9 about a liquid. But, again. finding that inadequate, I 

10 turned to other sources. 
ll Q. Well. let's see how inadequate it is. 
12 Let's tum to Claim 7 of the '558 patent. 
l3 colume 7. line 25. 
14 A.. (The witness complies.) 
.15 Q. Am I correct. Or. Eisch. that Claim 7 of the '558 
16 patc:nt refers to Various kinds ofliquid carriers? 
17 A. Yes, sir, you are. 
18 Q. And these carriers in Claim 7 are selected in six 
19 categories? 
20 A. Yes, that's right. 

21 Q. Two of those categories are Roman numeral IV and 
22 Roman numeral V; correct? 
23 ·A. Yes. 
24 Q. And those two categories ofliquid carriers are 
25 dowable solutions or pastes; correct? 

1 A. Yes, sir. 
2 Q. So the claim itselfhas defined liquid to include 
3 dowable solutions or pastes; correct? 
4 A. I don't see that, sir. 
5 Q. The claim sets forth liquid carriers; is that 
6 right? 
7 A. No, it sets forth Jlowable compositions. 

Pagc43 

8 Q. The claim descn"bes caaiers as being selected from 
9 a member of the group conSisting ofliquid polyhydroxies, 

10 liquid polyh}1hoxy compound esters, liquid solutions of 
11 solid pol )'hYdroxy and liquid solutions of solid 
12 polyhydroxy compound esters; coaect? 
13 A. Yes, sir. 
14 Q. Those are an liquids? 
15 A. Yes, but we start with the -
16 Q. Dr. Eisch. I haven't asked? 
17 A. We start with the Jlow. 
18 THE COURT: Excuse me. 
19 . MR. BROWN: Yes, ma'am. 
20 THE COURT: Go on. 
21 BYMR..BROWN: 
22 
23 

Q. Now, the claim proceeds to refer to these carriers, 
the carriers identified as liquid carriers, and it 

!4 identifies among those carriers ftowable solutions or 

1 
2 
3 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. · So one or more of the liquid carriers is a flowable 
solution or paste? 

4 A. Yes, sir. 
5 Q. And in your terminology, a paste is rmre viscous 
6 than a liquid? 
7 A. Yes, sir. 
8 Q. Now, are you aware that the patent the '558 patent 
9 defines the term flowable? 

10 A. Yes, I am 
11 Q. And do you recall that it defines the term flowabie 
12 as shape sustainable, but readily deformable? 
13 A. Yes. 
14 Q. So a flowab1e solution, according to the patent, is 
15 something that is shaped sustainable, but readily 
16 deformable; correct? 
17 A. Sir, if I may correct you, it talks about not a 
18 flowable solution, but a flowable composition. 
19 Q. Would you agree that the term flowable is used as 
20 shapes sustainable but readily deformable? 
21 A. Yes, sir. · ~ 

~ 22 Q. So in the context of a solution, flowable means ~ 
.:: 

23 shape sustainable, but readily deformable; correct? : 
24 A. No, sir. ~ 
25 Q. I see. But you would at least acknowledge that the ~ 
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1 liquid carrier includes pastes; correct? 
2 A Yes, sir. 
3 Q. And paste can be more viscous than gels, correct? 
4 A. I said before, it. depends on what co~osjtion )IOU 

5 have. It could be more or less. 
6 Q. All right So would you agree that the claim 
7 itself defines liquid to include materials such as 
8 pastes? 
9 A Yes, sir. ~ 

10 Q. Let's tum to the specification of the '558 patent, 
11 colwm 3, lines 40 to 45. ~ 
12 A. (The witness ~lies.) 
13 Q. And do you see there a discussion of liquid 
14 polyh)'droxy COIIJ>OUDds? ~ 

15 A. Yes, sir. 
16 Q. And does it in that passage refer to liquid 
17 polyhydroxy compounds as flowable liquids? 
18 A. Yes, sir. 
19 Q. Flowable is defined as shaped sustainable, but 
20 readily deformable; correct? 
21 A. That's how you define it in the patent, yes. 
22 Q. And flowablc in the patent can range from materials 
23 that are puddies or pastes to materials that are runny; 
24 correct? 

·1 25 pastes; correct? J 
.................................... ··-·······.·-·······.·····•.-.·····-.··.·-····-..···1'."" .. -"--.·····.·········---···············-.····---.············.-··.··-.····-.-.···-.··-. .. -·-.········.-.-.·········.···o..••.--.-.···.··.········y_ ......••........ _ ........................... ···•·······•····· 

25 A. Yes, sir. 
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Q. So the patent itself defines liquid to constitnte a 1 A Yes, sir. ' 2 _range ofmatc:rials that may extend from running matt:riars 2 Q. Does Galsci advocate a definition for liquid that ) 

3 to paste-like matc:rials; correct? 3 would exclude a mixture of pluronic and water at 4 m 
4 A Yes. sir. 4 degrees centigrade? 

,:: 

I 5 Q. Let's also look at the discussion of liquid 5 A I don't know, sir. ' 

6 solution of solid polyhydroxy compounds which is found in 6 Q. Do you have any idea what the consistency of I! 

~ 7 the '558 patent at column 4, lines 33 to 3&; 7 pluronic wata at 4 degrees cmtigrade? . 
~ 

8 A (The witness complies.) 8 A By my own obsavation. it looks a lot like glycaol 

I 9 Q. Perhaps we could extend the window up just a 9 at room tempaature. 
lO little. 10 Q. Runny? 
11 Now, do you see in that passage. Dr. Eisch. 11 A Well, I wouldn't call it runny. Thae's a definite 

I~ 12 reference to where the polyhydroxycompound is a solid? 12 viscous nature to it lli 13 A Yes, sir. 13 Q. Readily deformable? 
[\ 14 Q. A solvent such a watc;- may be mixed with it to 14 A If you want to call it that, yes. 

15 provide a. quote, flowable solution or paste, end quote, 15 Q. Now, your opinion as to the meaning of the tenn J[ 
16 of the comp01md? 16 liquid is based largely on your expa:imce as an academic ~ 
17 A Yes, sir, I see that 17 chemist? f:~ 18 Q. So again. the patentee has addressed the tc:rm. 18 A And cOnsultation of technical dictionaries. 
19 liquid and has referred to or deiined the term liquid as 19 Q. Did you offa any of those technical dictionaries 
20 a flowable solution or paste; correct? 20 during your testimm.y? 
21 A rm not snre. sir. 21 A No, sir. I much admit I didn't I thought it was -~ 
22 Q. Am I correct that Gensci advocates a definition .for 22 such a straightforward tc:m1. 

I 23 liquid that would exclude a mixture ofpluronic in watc;-? 23 Q. And would you agree that your definition of the 
24 A For a liquid. sir? No, they do not advocate that 24 tam liquid is not based on a Surv-ey on how those who ' 
25 Q. So is it your testimony that a mixture ofpluronic 25 work with bone graft materials day in and day out use the ~ 

-, 
i 
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1 in wata at room ~CJ"atu:re is a liquid? I tc:rm; correct? 
2 A No, it is not 2 A That's correct, yes. 
3 Q. Right So thc:n perhaps if I - you misunderstood 3 Q. Am I correct that you don't work with bone graft t 4 my question or I miss phrased it, but am I correct that 4 materials? ~ ., 
5 you and Gcnsci take the position that the tc:rm liquid 5 A That's correct 
6 would exclude from its scope a mixture ofpluronic in 6 Q. Did you attempt to determine whether Gc:nsci.. as a 
7 wata? 7 participant in the field ofbone graft materials, uses 
8 A At room tempc:J"ature. 8 the term. liquid in a way that is consist with itS 
9 Q. All right 9 definition of the tc:rm in this litigation? 

10 THE COURT: Stop now. We're going to take a 10 A No, I have no knowledge on that 
11 break. 11 Q. Well, you mentioned during testimmy, Dr. Coleson 
12 MR. BROWN: Very well, }'OUr Honor. 12 and Dr. Clochi; do you recall that? 
13 THE COURT: You had best ask that questions 13 A Yes, sir. 
14 again whc:n we come back. 14 Q. Would who's Dr. Coleson? 
15 MR. BROWN: We'll heed the Court's advice, 15 A He is, I believe. a director of research for Gc:nsci 
16 your Honor .. 16 and Dr. Camron Clochi, I believe, is an oral surgeon. 
17 (Recess.) 17 Q. Affiliated with Gcnsci? 
18 THE COURT: Go on. 18 A I think he was at one time bad some affiliation. I 
19 MR. BROWN: Thank }Uti, your Honor. 19 don't know if that is ongoing or not 
20 I hope I remcmbaed the right question. Let 20 Q. And Is it your understanding go he's the individual 
21 me try this, Dr. Eisch. 21 responsible for the pluronic and water mixture·? 
22 BY MR. BROWN: 22 A Yes, that's nzy understanding. 
23 Q. Am I correct that you and Gcnsci advocate a 23 Q. And so you would agree that both Dr. Coalson and 
24 definition for liquid that would exclude a mixture of 24 Dr. Clochi work in the field ofbone graft mataials? 
25 pluronic in watc:r at room tempc;-ature? 25 A Yes, I think that's correct 

·.-.•.-.•.•,••.•••,•,•.•.•.••"''',•-·.•.•.•.•.o.;.•A··-·-·-···-·-·.·.·.•.·.·.-.~-.·.·.•.-,•.•.•,•o.,.•.•.··.·.-.•.-.·.·.,. .............. •.•.•.•.• .• •.·.•.-.·.•-·.-.•.-.•,.n-'-"·..,. •••. •.-.·.·.-.·~-·-•.•.-..·.·-·n.•,•J!'.·-·-·.·.•.-,.:" ,•,""·"~'"·"·""'-"'·""'''·'·"'·'".',',-.-.•.•,•.•.• •• •.-.-.•.·.··-·.-_.,.,•.••.••.•.·.-.•.•.•.•.·.·.·.·····-·.• .... -.•. ·.·.·-·-·-·.·-·.·.•.•.·~·-·-·-·.· .. ·.·.•.•.•.•.•,•.·.·.·.·.·.-..··.·.·.·.·.·.•.•.··"-·-·.•.-..·.·.·.·.·.•.•.·.···"'·"._.. .•... ·.·.·.·.··.·.··.·.·.·.·.··.···.·.·.···--..• 
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1 Q. Now, based on your definition of the tam liquid, 
2 you've said that pluronic and water at a room temperarure 
3 would not be a liquid; right? 
4 A Yes, sir. 
5 Q. But whe1 Dr. Coleson and Dr. Clocki and Gensci 
6 refer to pluronic and water, they refer to it as a 
7 liquid; correct? 
8 A y ~. sir, they do. 
9 Q. Let's look at some of those examples. Trial 

10 Exln'bit 34. 
ll A (The witness complies.) 
12 Q. If we can focus in on the abstract left-hand colunm 
13 about tc:n lines down that starts with when disolved in 
14 water? 
15 Do you have that passage in front of you? 
16 A Yes, I do. 
17 Q. Would you direct me to which line it is? 
18 Q. Yes, it's eight lines down. 
19 A Yes, I have - whe1 dissolved in water, yes. 
20 Q. And it read, quote: 
21 "Whe1 dissolved in water the poloxamer 
22 demmstrates reverse -
23 I apologize, your Honor 
24 THE COURT: That's all right 
25 MR. BROWN: All right, now you and I can read 
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this. 
2 It read, quote: 
3 "When dissolved in water the poloxamer 
4 do:nonstrates reverse thamal behavior, since at low 
5 ambient temperature, it is a ftuid liquid, but at 
6 higher body temperatures it .tbiDlS a viscous liquid 
7 gel." Eiid quote. · 
8 A You omitted Word soL 
9 Q. You're quite right, and I apologize .tbr that. 

10 But other than that, did I read that passage 
11 conectlY? 
12 A I got that right, )'es. 
13 Q. And that passage comes from an article that was 
14 prepared by Drs. Coleson and Clochi ofGcnsci; correct? 
15 A Yes, sir. 
16 Q. And that are in that article talking about the 
17 po1oxamer pluronic Fl27; correct? 
18 A Yes, sir. 
19 Q. They're talking about the very material that is 
20 used in their dynagraph product? 
21 A rm not sme, sir, if they're talking about the 
22 very same concentration. I'm Wlder the impression that 
23 the dynagraph product is 25 percent by weight of pl:aronic 
24 and water. 
25 I don't know what concentrations are being 

2 
3 
4 

5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 

talked about here. 
Q. All right But it indicates that poloxamer. which 
we know as pluronic in water is a fluid liquid at room 
tanperatu.re. 
A.. And let's not furget sol. They do call it a sol. 
sir. 
Q. But it uses the term liquit; correct? 
A And also the term sol, yes, sir. 
Q. A fluid liquid sol. but at higher body 
temperatures, it's a viscous liquid, but in both cases, 
it is a liquid; correct? 
A. That is the usage here, yes. 

Q. And that's the usage by those who work in this 
field day in and day out; correct? 
A. Well, this is one instance of it, sir. I have not 
the infmmation of the survey of which you speak. 
Q. So ~ould you agree that Gensci even recognizes that 
is gels are liquids? 
A If we take these two gentlo:nen as being of 
representative ofGc:nsci. yes. 
Q. Let's tum to Exhibit 93. 
A (The witness complies.) 

MR. BROWN: Backing up fur a minute, your 
Honor, I offer E.xluoit 34 in evidence. 

THE COURT: Yes. 

BY MR. BROWN: 
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Q. Now, turning to Exlnoit 93, Dr. Eisch, are you 
familiar with that patent? 
A Yes, I am 
Q. That is the 555 - '558 patCJ.t by Camron Clochi? 
A Yes. 
Q. And you understand that that patent is directed to 
the use ofpluronic in water? 
A Yes. sir. 
Q; Or in this case an application involving dmtal 
inplants? 

12. A Yes, sir. 
13 Q. And am I correct. Dr. Eisch, that in this patCJ.t 
14 Dr. Clochi refers to - let's see if I can find the 
15 precise language. He says that: 
16 "The cmier is a liquid which will gel 
17 at about 37 degrees." 
18 A Could you show that to me, please. 
19 Q. I will try to do so, Dr. Eisch. I apologize for 
20 the quality of this copy. 
21 If we look - this isn't precisely the 
22 passage, but if we look at colmm 2, line 18. 
23 A. Can you blow that up? Okay. 
24 Q. I'm sony, that's not - that's not the right 
25 passage. 

I 
< 

~ 

~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 
-: 

j 
~ 
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1 MR. BROWN: May I have a moment, your Honor? 
2 TIIE COURT: Yes, certainly. 
3 (Pause in the proceedings.) 
4 MR. BROWN: Thanks to my able assistant, we 
5 fuWld it 
6 W e'lllook at the abstract, which appears on 
7 the cover page of the patent. Now, that's not it. 
g All right. Well. I won't take any further 
9 time with this exhibit. 

10 BY MR. BROWN: 
11 Q. Could you please tum to Exhibit 517, page 6, lines 
12 23 to 32. 
13 Well. first of all. do you recognize Exhibit 
14 517, Dr. Eisch? 
15 A Yes, I do. 
16 Q. And do you recognize that as an European patent 
17 application filed by Gensci? 
18 A Yes, sir. 
19 Q. With Dr. Clochi as the inventor? 
20 A Yes, sir. 
21 Q. And do you understand that patent is directed to ari. 
22 invention that includes within its scope the ·products die 
23 graph products? 
24 A Yes. 
25 Q. Now, this passage reads. quote: 

1 "In proffered embodim::nts of a 
2 composition of a present invention, the carrier is a 
3 liquid diluted in a solvent or a solid dissolved in 
4 a solvent-
S Now, that's not the passage either. We're on 
6 the wrong page, it's page 40, lines 19 tbrough IS. 
7 THE COURT: Now, let me see what we're doing 
8 here. This is? This is?· 
9 MR. BROWN: We're focusing on a patent 

10 application file by Gcnsci with Dr. Clochi as ~e 
11 inventor directed to the dynagraph product. 
12 Q. And on page 4 of that docnrrrnt do you see a 
13 desaiption of that's called prefcued mxles? 
14 A Yes, sir. 
15 Q. And it says when referring- when describing the 
16 dynagraph product. that the COiqlOsition of the present 
17 invention is a flowable liquid when applied it a bony 
18 defect 
19 Do you sec that language? 
20 A. Yes, sir, I do. 
21 MS. WAACK: We have an objection to this 
22 docum::nt for lack of foundation. 
23 THE COURT: This is? 
24 MR BROWN: The witness has identified it as 
25 an European patent application.. 

2 

1 
P:.ge$6 h·~ 

. THE COURT: Yes, he has. Has sem he ever ~-~.- ··,_.· 
sem 1t before? ~-:._ ,. 
BY MR. BROWN: ~ .. 3 

4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

Q. Have you ever sec:n it before, Dr. Eisch? ~ 

A Yes, sir, I have. 1: 
THE COURT: And you studied it? ~ 
THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am i 
THE COURT: All right, go on. ) 
MS. WAACK: Excuse me, the foundation ! 

objeCtion is directed to whether or not that represc:nts : 
the accused patc:nt, the dynagraph product. He hasn't 
established that. 

MR. BROWN: He's testify that it does. 
THE COURT: He did. didn't he?. 
THE WITNESS: I'm sorry, I certainly did not 

yet from tbis document say that it's clear to me from the 
reading of it that we're talking about the dynagraph 
product. 

Could you direct me to a passage in this 
document that would make that clear? · 

THE COURT: ·Just ask him the question. 
BY MR. BROWN: 
Q. Is the prefc:rred embodiment the dynagraph product? 
A I don't know. 
Q. Do you recall that this patc:nt describes dynagraph? 

1 A (No response.) 
2 Q. I'm sorry, doctor-
3 A Oh, I'm sorry. was that question? 
4 Q. Yes. 
5 THE COURT: Yes, it was. 
6 THE WITNESS: I'm soay, ask it again. 
7 BYMRBROWN: 
8 Q. Do you recall that this patent is directed to 
9 dynagraph? 

10 A It's directed to that kind of product, but whether 
11 this is the dynagraph product. I don't recollect 
12 . Q. All right. Let's tum to page 9, colmm- about 
13 cohnm 20 to 25. l'msoay, lines 15 to 25. 
14 A (The witness complies.) 
15 Q. And do you see at line 20 the statcmc:nt, quote, a 
16 competition of the invention is available as dyn.agraph 
17 gel? 
18 A Yes, sir, I see that 
19 THE COURT: Go on. 
20 BY MR. BROWN: 
21 Q. . And it says that the composition has a gel 

· 22 consistency; correct? 
23 A Yes, sir. 
24 Q. And this is described as one of the preferred 
25 embodiments? 
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I Page '8 Page 60 ~-">'~ l A. Yes. sir. l Q. And have you seen this docum01t befure? 
2 Q. And the preferred anbodim01ts refer to a Yes, I have. 

•:" .~/ 
2 A. 

3 composition that is a tlowable liquid wh01 applied to a 3 Q. And. in fuct, this is one of the docum01ts that you 
4 bony defect; correct? 4 alluded to befure when you acknowledged that drs. Chochi 
5 A. Yes, sir. 5 and Poleson used the term liquid when referring to a 
6 Q. Befure this- let's move to trial Exlu"bit 106. 6 pluronic and water solution? 
7 To page - well. backing up, I'm sony. 7 A. I would like to correct you, sir. I used it in 
8 MR. BROWN: The last exlu"bit was 517. We 8 referring to the word solution. 
9 would offer that in evidence at this time. 9 Q. Oh. so in your testimony you did not acknowledge 

10 MS. WAACK; We have an objection about that-- 10 that they used the term liquid? 
11 THE COURT: Pardon me? 11 A. Not to my recollection, that's right 
12 MS. WAACK; We have an objection to moving 12 Q. All right. 
13 that document into evidence. 13 Q. Well. based on the documents we've seen so fur, 
14 THE COURT: What is it? 14 Exlu"bit 517, Exlu"bit 93, Exht"bit 34, would you agree that 
15 MS. WAACK:. Lack of fuundation. 15 doctors Clochi and Paulson would describe a gel as a 
16 MR. BROWN: It's the European PCT pat01t 16 liquid? 
17 application filed by Gc:nsci with Dr. Clochi as the 17 A. You11 have to refresh me on the conte.u Did they 
18 inventor. 18 use it in connection with liquid solution? Or did they 
19 THE COURT: Have you ever seen this before? 19 use it freestanding? I don't recollect 
20 THE WITNESS: Yes. your Honor. 20 Q. All right, we've covered those exlu"bits. Let's try 
21 THE COURT: And you studied it? 21 to move on to - all right, we're fucusing on Exlu"bit 106 
22 THE WITNESS: Yes. your Honor. 22 on page 5 and on the second paragraph. 
23 THE COURT: Go on. 23 And in the context of discussing pluronic F127 
24 BY MR. BROWN: 24 if water, do you see in the last sentence Drs. Chochi and 
25 Q. · All right, tmning to Exlu"bit 106, page- well. 25 Paulson say: 

PageS9 Page61 

1 first, can you identifY Exhibit 1 06? I "Thus a mixture can be prepared which 
2 A. Is that what's on the saeen now. 2 will be a liquid or tlowable gel at ambient or room 

~ 3 Q. That's the first page of it 3 temperature in a solid or rigid gelllik:e body 
4 Do :you recall having seen an article or 4 temperature." ~ 
5 document prepared - 5 A. Y es.l see that, sir. 
6 A. Could you show me - is this the first - doesn't 6 Q. And they denne ambient or room temperature as 15 
7 give the authors here or anything, so I have trouble with 7 tO 25 degrees? 
8 it 8 A Yes. sir. 
9 Q. That's fair enough. I was just about to descnbe 9 Q. So they would acknowledge that pluronic in water at 

10 the document It appears to have been prepared by 10 room tcmperatai'e is a liquid or tlowable; correct? 
11 doctors Clochi and_ Coldson. Let's go to page 6, which I 11 A According to this statement, yes. 
12 belic:ve identifies the authors, and focus in. on the 12 .Q. Now, befure this litigation, were you f.uniliar with 
13 bottom of the page. 13 the litc:rature on bone graft matc:rials? 
14 A. (The witness eotq>lies.) 14 A No, sir, not at all. 
15 Yes, I sec that. 15 Q. Were you fmriiiar with the patents in the art of 
16 Q. So does that indicate to you that this article was 16 bone graft materials made from demineralized bone -
17 prepared by Drs. C1ochi and Paulson? 17 A. No, I had no occasion to. 

:; 

18 A. Yes. 18 Q. Befure this litigation, had you ever seen the '558 
19 Q. And this document is directed to the use of 19 or '65 5 patent? 
20 pluronic Fl27 as a medium to demmeralized bone 20 A No, I bad not 
21 particles~ correct? 21 Q. As between you and Drs. Clochi and Pohlson, would 
22 A. Are you reading that from somewhere, sir? 22 · you agree that they are closer to the typical person 
23 Q. The title, let's go back to page l. 23 reading the '558 patent and the '655 patent than you? 
24 A. Yes, I see the title, and that does agree with your 24 A. Yes. I would. 
25 reading. 25 Q. So in terms ofhow a person of ordinarily skill in 
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the an would read this patent. you would defer to them; 
2 correct? 
3 A. Well, ordinary skill in the an insofar as I 
4 wouldn't put in on simply bone material. but certainly 
5 polymer chemistry and genc:ral chemistry enters into the 
6 material embodied.in these patents. And so I think a 
7 person of ordinary skill in the an in chemistry, 
8 including polymer chemistry would certainly have 
9 something to say about how these tc:rms are to be used. 

10 Q. But Drs. Clochi and Coleson clearly considered gels 
11 to be liquids at room t~c:rature; correct? 
12 A. That's what it says here, yes. 
13 Q. So are you suggesting that they're not persons of 
14 ordinary skill in the an? 
1.5 A. Not in an ordfuary skill in the an of chemistry, 
16 in polym:rs chemistry, sir. 
17 Q. Even though they are the ones who are making the 
18 product; correct? 
19 A. That's right. sir. 
20 Q. Let's tum to the term solution. 
21 As with liquid, your definition of a term 

22 solution is based on your experience? 
23 . A. And textbook knowledge thc:rc:of such as the 
24 textbooks in physical chemistry which were cited earlier 
25 in my testim:my. 
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1 Q. You don't rely at all in language in the patent to 
2 construe the tcm1 solution; do you? 
3 A. One cc:rtainly takes that into account 
4 Q. During your testimmy, did you indicate in what 
5 way, if at all, you relied on the langnage in the patent 
6 to construe the term solution? 
7 A. I said that I took the use of the word solution in 

· 8 its ordinary technical sense, and hence I thought it 
9 based upon what would be in a physical chemistry 

1 0 textbook. 
11 Q. So in other words. you did not rely on the patent 
12 to give you any guidance as to bow to construe the term 
13 solution; COIIect? 
14 A. No, that's not correct. 
15 Q. Does your opinion on the term solution take into 
16 account how those who work in the field ofbone graft 
17 materials use the term solution? · 

d Gens. . ha d fined . lud I . . .... " I ""' an cr ve e tt, exc es p uromcs m warer·~ ~,,~ - ~ 

A. Yes, sir. · f:t, ) 2 
3 Q. Let's see if your definition and Gensici's is ~j -
4 
5 
~tent ~th Gensci's own usage of the _tmn as a 11 
parncrpant m the field ofbone graft matc:nals. Let's r.~ 

6 
7 
8 

rum to Trial Exhibit 41 o. l .. !:_: 

Have you seen Exlnbit 41 O'before, Dr. Eisch? [t 

~ 'b:~S:~derstand that it is what's called an SOP 1: 9 
10 
11 
12 

or a standard operating procedure at Gensci? 
A Yes, I understand that tl 
Q. And that standard operating procedure is used in m 

13 this case to- for the production of d)nagraph gel and l~ 
14 
15 

puddy? f:j 
A Yes, sir. ~ 

16 Q. So this is a documc:nt that would evidence how ., 
17 Gensci uses the tc:rm solution, if, in fact, that tarn is 
18 found in the docummt; correct? 
19 A. Yes, sir, to a certain audience. 
20 Q. Let's rum to paragraph 4 ofExhibit 410. 
21 
22 

And am I correct that in paragraph four Gcnsci 
descnbes a GPX solution and then defuies that GPX 

23 
24 
25 

solution as a. quote: 
"Solution containing a mixture of 

pluronic F127 and sterile water for irrigation or 

1 equipment" End quote. 
2 Correct? 
3 A. Yes, sir. 
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4 Q. So am I correct that Gcnsci in this document has 
5 ascn'bed or given the meaning - has given the tc:im. 
6 solution a meaning that would include within its scope a 
7 mixture ofpluronic an water? 
8 A. Yes, sir, to the limited audience for wbich it was 
9 meant 

10 Q. And that limited audience is those people actively 
11 engaged in the practice of making bone graft materials 
12 . for the industry, correct? 
13 A. No, sir, it is the technicians with high school 
14 educations who are cmying out a procedure. 
15 MR BROWN: We offc:r at this tim: Exln'bit 410 
16 in evidence, your Honor. 
17 THE COURT: Yes. 

< 

1-

18 
19 

A No, it does not. 18 BY MR. BROWN: 
Q. And you and Gcnsci advocate a definition for the 19 Q. Let's turn to trial Exln'bit 25? 

· 20 term solution that would exclude a mixture ofpluronic in 20 A (The witness complies.) 
21 water, is that correct? 21 Q. Do you recognize Trial Exln'bit 25, Dr. Eisch? 
22 A It would make a distinction from them, clearly, 22 A Yes, I do. 
23 · based upon known principles of solution and colloid 23 Q. This is a page out of Dr. Poleson's notebook? 
24 chemistry, yes, sir. 24 A. Yes, sir. 

·1 25 Q. Is iqour position that the tam solution, as ;t>U 25 Q. And am I correct- well. let's fucus in on the top ... .J 
••••••••.••,O••••••••.•···~•,-.-.•.AA."""I':"""""" ..,..,_ ..... ., ,._-,~·n,·.·-..•·,- .-.._.,..,... •••••• .._._ •• , ••• ·•••••••"•"-"•"•" •• ._ ••.••••••• .,. •••. •n••.••-"•.-.••.•,.••.••••••.-.•.••·.·.·-.·.· .•••••• ._._._. ••.•• ••••.•••••.•.•••••• • •••-.••••·.·.-.·.•.••.•0•••••.••.••-.••••••••._.•-.••••••.••v•••••••••••••-.-.·· .,.. ••.•• •.•••••••• 
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ofthepage. 
And you clearly had read this passage before 

3 you gave testim:my yesterday; right'! 
4 A Yes, sir. 
5 Q. · And that was what prompted you to say that the -
6 that the individuals such as doctors Coleson and Clochi 
7 used the term solution in a way with which you don't 
8 agree; correct? 
9 A I said they use it in a man-on-the-street way as a 

I 0 shorthand. instead of going and writing out the whole 
11 phrase, colloidal suspension or dispersion. 
12 Q. So Dr. Coleson, the man. the proverbial man on the 
13 street, has referred to a lot ofPLF127 as a solution in 
14 that passage; correct? 
15 A Yes, sir. 
16 Q. And PLF127 refers to pluronic 127; correct? 
17 A Yes, sir, I thin.lc so. 
18 Q. Now, Dr. Coleson isn't a lab technician; is he? 
19 A Well, whc::n it comes to the chemical background. he 
20 might be on that level, yes. 
21 He's really, I understand. a biologist, and in 
22 that level, he's not the man on the street But whc::n 
23 he's tallcing chemical language, he might appear like a 
24 man on the street 
25 Q. So are )'ou suggt:Sting that the people who read the 
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I patents directed to bone graft materials IWSt approach 
2 them with a Ph.D. in order to give proper meaning to the 
3 t.e1:ms used in the patc::nt? 
4 A . Well, they nmst approach him with ordinary skill in 
5 the art; nmst theynot? 
6 Q. And you don't think that Dr. Col~on has ordinary 
7 skill in the art when he uses the tcnn solution? 
8 A He has nme than ordinary skill in the art whc::n it 
9 comes to bone preparation. But whcD we're taking about 

10 the chemical aspects ofhis background, he might not be 
11 one of ordin.a:cy skill in the art. 
12 Q. We'll see what Dr. Coleson has to say about that 
13 later. 
14 Let's refer to -
15 MR. BROWN: l'msouy, did I offer Exlnbit 25 
16 in evidence?. 
1 7 I do so at this time, your Honor? 
18 THE COURT: These may come in. 
19 BY MR. BROWN: 
20 Q. Please tum to Trial Exlnbit 23. 
21 Do you realize trial Exlnoit 23? 
22 A Yes, sir. 
13 Q. And am I correct that Exlnoit 23 is another -
L4 well, that appears to be -
25 A We've sec::n this before; have we not? 

~ 
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1 Q. We're not on the right page. l apologize, let's 
2 see if we can find it- page 2. 
3 
4 
5 
6 

And at page two, line 5, let's focus in. 
All right, backing up for a minute, you 

understand that this is a standard operating procedure 
for Gensci? 

7 A Yes, sir, I do. 
8 Q. And it's prepared for the purpose of producing the 
9 product dynagraph gel and puddy? 

10 A Yes, I do. 
11 Q. So this is the way that the people actively 
12 involved in making the product use the term such as 
13 solution; correct? 
14 A Right, the technician, yes, sir. 
15 Q. And in this case, in line 5 it says, quote: 
16 "Keep solution at one to ten degrees 
17 centigrade. Disregard GPX solution if it rums 
18 cloudy or is passed expiration date," end quote. 
19 Correct? 
20 A Yes, sir. 
21 Q. And so we have another example where Gensci is 
22 using the term solution to descnbe pluronic in water -
23 A Right, for audience of technicians. 
24 Q. You referred earlier in your test:ixmny to starch in 

.;/:'"~ 
~ } 
< 

~ 
., 

~ 25 water as a solution; do you recall that? 

1 A I said in common parlance, starch. it's called a 
2 starch solution, but in actnality, it's really an 
3 colloidal dispersion. 
4 Q. Starch with a polysaccharide; conect? 
5 A Oh. yes, sir. 
6 Q. So starch in water is an example of a 
7 polysaccharide in water that is called a solution; 
8 COIIect'l 
9 A. You misquote me. I said it's called an colloidal 

10 dispersion in technical language. 
11 The man on the street might can it a solution 
12 . but only the man or woman on the street. 
l3 Q. And someone such a Dr. Coleson? 
14 A. I don't know what he calls it I had no occasion 
1 S to see what he caDs it. 
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16 Q. Would you acknowledge that it's common even in 
17 technical publications to refer to polysaccharides in 
18 water as solutions? 
19 A In what kind of publications, sir? 
20 Q. Technical publications. 
21 A. Only in rather loosely written technical - you 
22 would never find that, fur example, in articles to be 
23 published in the Jo1llll.al of the American Chemical Society 
24 or in Journal of Organic Chemistry or in Journal of of 
25 Physical Chemistry, to name just a few. Because that 
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Page 70 Page 12 I~, kind of language would be caught by the referee system 1 l'vfR... BROWN: For the middle of the page it 

" and would not be pcrmanc:nted to emerge in print 2 reads, quote: j l 
. . 

3 Q. Are you familiar with a treatise called the 3 "There are of course some DX>lecules that . 

4 foundations of colloid science? 4 are individually larger than one nanometer in size. 
. 

5 A. Yes, I believe that's one ofthose. 5 These macro IIX>lecules can often be uniformly 
. 

6 Q. And Dr. Hunter is the primary author of that 6 dispersed through a fluid medium, and they then form 
-: 

~ 

7 publication? 7 a colloidal solution or dispc:rsion. Proteins, 
8 A. Yes. sir. 8 polysaccharides, like in starge and many synthetic 
9 Q. And, in fuct, isn't that one of the exhibits that 9 polymers fall into this category," end quote. 

10 you selected for this hearing? 10 BY l'vfR... BROWN: 
11 A. Yes, sir. 11 Q. So here's an example, Dr. Eisch, of the learned 
12 Q. Would you please turn to Exhibit 1549, tab X, in 12 treatise that refers to starch in water as a solution; 
13 Gensici's notebook. 13 correct? 
14 A. Oh, I'm sorry, yes, I do. Which tab was that, I'm 14 A Oh, you forget the adjative colloidal that must 
15 sorry'! 15 rmdifyit. 
16 THE COURT: 1549. 16 Q. So you're saying that colloidal must always be used § 
17 MR. BROWN: X. 17 in conjlmction whc:n referring to a starch solution? · •. 

18 THE WITNESS: X. 18 A. I'm saying that that's what is done here. < 

19 MR. BROWN: Your Honor, do you have a copy? 19 Obviously, the editor of a treatise is not 
20 THE COURT: No. 20 going to get caught in sloppy language. He does not call 
21 MR. BROWN: May I hand the Court. 21 it simply a solution. He calls it a colloidal solution, 
22 We do not have the visual on that, your Honor, 22 and thc:n to be mxe correct in accordance with, he then 
23 because it has a Gc:nsci exhibit. 23 says in place of a solution, we will be reading 
24 THE COURT: I have the book right now. 24 dispersion. So he's really talking about a starch in 
25 MR. BROWN: Let~ sec if I can proceed 25 water as being a colloidal dispc:rsion. 

·\ 
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1 with-no. 1 Q. Well, .isli't it quite common to hear people descnbe 
2 BYMRBROWN: 2 colloidal dispersions a solutions? 
3 Q. Would you please tum to page 441 of that exhibit, 3 A Not in correct speech. 

~ 4 Dr. Eisch.. 4 Q. I'm not talking about correa speach, Dr. Eisch.. 
5 A. Yes, sir, I have it. 5 I'm talking about whether it's common fur 
6 Q. And toward the middle of the page do you see the 6 people who work with chemicals. Whether they be bepch 
7 paragraph that starts with the WOtds "There are of course 7 people or Ph.D.'s, don't they in t:Very day language refer 
8 some molecules ... II 8 to many colloidal dispersions as sip]ply solutions? 
9 A. Yes, sir. 9 A. Well, if you're in a position of suCh a survey, 

10 Q. Allow me to quote that paragraph. It reads, quote: 10 sir, I'd like to share it with )'01L 

ll "There are. of course, some molecules 11 I would say that careful language in 
12 that are individually larger than one manometer in 12 . scientific discussions uses proper tccninology. There's 
13 size. These maao molecules are often be unifonnly 13 always a jargon or casual reference that could occur in 
14 dispersed through a fluid medium. And they then 14 discussions. But in fimnal discussions and in writing 
15 fonn an colloidal solution or dispersion, proteins. 15 one uses proper tccninology. 
16 polysaccharides, like st3rch. and many pol)IIletS thll 16 Q. Is pluronic in water a colloidal dispersion? 
17 into that category. End quote. 17 A. Yes, sir. 
18 Did I read that passage correctly? 18 Q. Isn't it common to refer to pluronic in water as a 
19 A Yes. sir, )011 got it right. 19 solution? 
20 Q. It's Exhibit 1549, tab X. 20 A I would like to have the survey results on that. 
21 MR CODDING: What was what name. Page 441 of 21 Q. Do you have any knowledge of whether it is common 
22 diversion of this e.wbit we were initially given as 22 to refer to pluronic in water as a solution? 
23 Exhibit 68 to the Grant declaration. 23 A. I have no results of a survey that I've taken to 

} 24 It should be the third page of the exhibit. 24 offer into evidence. 
25 THE COURT: Quote it again. please. 25 Q. Well,·let's look at one of the exhibits that you 
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Page 74 Page 76 . 
1 did select for this hearing. It's Trial Exhibit 1666 at 1 A Yes, sir. He could do so, because pluronics will ·. _. ~·"';-:·,,"':_ 

~ l tab cc. 2 form solutions tmder cc:rtain concentrations and m~.da- t 
l 

3 A (The witness complied) 3 cata:in conditions. 
4 Q. Do you have that in front of you, Dr. Eisch? 4 Q. And, in fact, he refas to dissolving pluronic in 

~ 5 A Yes, sir, I do. 5 solution on page -
6 MR. BROWN: Does the Comt have that exhibit, 6 A Have you directed me to that? 
7 your Honor? 7 Q. I am in the process of doing so. 
g THE COURT:· Yes, I do. Where are we looking? 8 THE COURT: He's doing that now. 
9 MR. BROWN: Let's look at page 2, the first 9 • MR. BROWN: Page 4, rmsorry- it's two IIX>re 

10 column Wlder experimental section. 10 pages, bottom of the right-hand column. 
ll BY MR. BROWN: 11 BY MR. BROWN: 

~ 12 Q. And do you see the language, quote: 12 Q. Do you see he refas to the fact that all 
13 "Commercial samples of ethyieneoxide 13 ingredients-are dissolved and in solution? ~ 

14 slash propylene oxide, block copolymas available 14 A Yes, sir. 
~ 

15 from BASF Corporation Wider the registered trademark IS Q. Axe you - backing up to the cover page of 
16 pluronic were used without further purification." 16 deposition- I'm sorry, its Exhibit 36. 
17 A Yes, sir. 17 Backing up to the covc:r page ofExlnbit 36, is 
18 Q. End quote. So what they're talking about hc:re is 18 this an article that you have seen before, Dr. Eisch? 
19 pluronic in a solvent; correct? 19 A Yes, I have. 
20 A Yes, sir. 20 Q. And you tmdastand that it was written by 
21 Q. And if we go to the next column. column 2 on 21 Dr. Somlk.a? 
22 page 2, we see in the second, the first full piuagraph, a 22 A Yes, it's so written.. 
23 reference to, quote, stock solutions ofEO slash PO, 23 MR. BROWN: We offer Exlnbit 36 in evidence, 
24 block copolymas in water were prepared in aliquant of 24 your Honor. 
25 these solutions were added to the Q vat, end quote. 25 THE COURT: Yes. 
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1 Do you see that? 1 MR. BROWN: At this time we also offer 
2 A Yes, sir, I do. 2 exlubit - Exhibit 23 in evidence. It was the standard 
3 Q. So this is a scientific publications. It's the 3 operating procedure. 
4 Jouimal of Physical Chemistry, which you would recognize 4 THECOURT: Yes. 
5 as a distinguished publications? 5 BY MR..l3ROWN: 
6 A Yes, sir. 6 Q. Now, yesterday you refer to Hawley's chemical 
7 Q. And in this publications by these scientists who 7 dictionary? 
8 also happen to be associated with BASF, the finmder of 8 A Yes, sir. 
9 plurtmic, they refer to pluronic in water as simply a 9 Q. And did you happen to, when you wc:re preparing your 

10 solution; COirect? 10 testimony on the terms solution, look in Hawley's to see 
11 A Yes, sir. May I add-to that? 11 whether Hawley's had a definition? 
12 Q. If your counsel thinks it's necessary to fullowup, 12 A No, I did not. 

13 you're free to do so. 13 MR. BROWN: May I approach the witness, your 
14 Now, do you know- are you .emDiiar with or 14 Honor? 
IS aware ofDr. Irving Smulca? 15 THE COURT: Yes. 
16 A rm. aware of the name of several publications that 16 BY MR. BROWN: 
17 have been produced in this matter. 17 Q. Dr. Eisch, rm handing you Hawley's condensed 
18 Q. Now, do you undcrstmd that Dr. Sumlk.a was one of 18 chemical dictionary, 13th edition. 
19 the pioneas in the development ofplmonics? 19 A What year! 
20 A Yes, sir, I do. 20 Q. From 1997. 

I 21 Q. And Dr. Smulka has written extensively on the use 21 A Okay. 
22 ofpluronics; correct? 22 Q. Is that sufficiently CUII'ent? 
23 A Yes, sir. 23 A Sounds flirly ClDient. 

24 Q. Axe you aware that Dr. SIIJDlka refas to dissolving 24 Q. All right And you'll see on page-
25 pluronic in water as a solvent? 2S MS. WAACK; Objection to this document, no ~ 
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1 foundation. The witness just testified he hasn't seen in · 
before. And we haven't bec:n provided a copy. 

J TIIE COURT: You'll have to ask bim some 
4 foundational questions. 
5 BYMRBROWN: 
6 Q. Well. I thiDk you testified yesterday, Dr. Eisch, 
7 that you recognized Hawley's as one of refc:rences that 
8 you would refer to in fonmlating or construing terms of 
9 an, is that -

10 A. Tc:rms of chemical nature. 
11 Q. Tc:rms of a chemical nature? 
12 A. RigbL 
13 Q. Right So you have used this treatise before? 
14 A. That's right I just would add. of come, that 
15 the tcnn solution is oot of a chemical nature. It's of a 
16 physical nature. 
17 Q. WeD, with that qualification, you've used the book 
18 before; haven't you? 
19 A Sure. 
20 Q. And you used it, in fact, in part as a basis for 
21 your testim:my on the polyhydroxy? 
22 A. That's correct. 
23 MR. BROWN: May I hand it to the witness? 
24 TIIE COURT: Sbow it- do you want to see it? 
25 Well, you look at it, and we'll stop now. 

.. -·- .. ~.-......... ..,.. 
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A F T E R N 0 0 N S E S S I 0 N 

(COURT IN SESSION at 1:00 p.m.) 

THE COURT: Will the witness take his seat. 

MR. BROWN: May I'm take care of some housekeeping 

matters? 

THE COURT: Yes. 

MR. BROWN: I'd like to offer some documents in 

evidence that I overlooked. First is Exhibit 175, the '558 

Patent. Second is.Exhibit 319 which is the excerpt from The 

Dictionary of Biochemistry and Molecularbioloby. 

The third is the Websters Ninth New Collegiate 

Dictionary, Exhibit 321. The fourth is the Clokie 5,503,558 

Patent which was marked as Exhibit 93. 

THE COURT: I don't remember that. What is that? 

MR. BROWN: That is the Patent by Cameron Clokie 

directed to pluronic in water mixture. 

THE CQURT: Yes. 

MR. BROWN: And the last is Exhibit 106 which is an 

article prepared by the Drs. Clokie and Coulson entitled 

Justification for the use of Poloxamer 407. 

THE COURT: Yes. 

MR. BROWN: I've placed up on the Bench, your Honor, 

a copy of Exhibit 719 and provided the witness with one as 

well. 

THE COURT: Condensed to the Hawley's? 

.'q:-7·-
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MR. BROWN: Yes, it is. 

BY MR. BROWN: 

Q. Have you had an opportunity to -- let's bring up 

Exhibit 710. And turn to the coloidal solution page and 

highlight that passage. 

Do you see page 1034 of Hawley's Chemical Condensed 

Dictionary reference to coloidal solutions? 

A. Solutions Colloidal, yes, sir. 

Q. Right. 

And that's interesting. It's under the term solution 

followed by the term, Colloidal, correct? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. And then immediately beneath that definition, there's 

another reference to solution, but followed by the term, 

true, correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. So Hawley's is referring to both of these as solutions, 

true solutions and Colloidal solutions, correct? 

A. Yes. 

But I suggest that the text of the definitions be 

read through. 

Q. All right. Let's do that. 

Colloidal Solution. 

Quote: A liquid Colloidal dispersion is often called 

a solution since Colloidal particles are larger than 

5 
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molecules, it is strictly incorrect to call such dispersions 

solutions, however, this term is widely used in the 

literature, end quote. 

Did I read that correctly? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And would you agree with Hawley's statement that that 

term solution is widely used in the literature to refer to 

Colloidal dispersions? 

A. I have no direct knowledge of that, sir. 

Q. Now, this morning, you testified that polysaccharides 

have more than 18 carbons in them, correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Are most polysaccharides at room temperature solids? 

A. Yes, sir. Invariably. 

Q. And would it also be true that those polysaccharide 

solids, when placed in water, would form a Colloidal 

dispersion? 

A. Most would, yes, sir. 

Q. All right. 

Let•s turn back to claim four of the '558 Patent. 

And again, Claim Four refers to various liquid 

carriers, correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And among the liquid carriers within the scope of the 

claim are polysaccharides, correct? 
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A. Yes, sir. 

But I don't see the phrase, liquid carriers, as such. 

I see liquid solutions or liquids. I don't see liquid 

carriers. 

Q. Well, the preface to the Wherein clause refers 

reads: ... the carrier being selected from a member of the 

group consisting of liquid polyyhydroxy compound, liquid 

polyhydroxy compound ester, liquid solution of solid 

polyhydroxy compound, and liquid solution of solid 

polyhydroxy compound esters and mixtures thereof. 

Right? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. All right. 

And we've established that polysaccharides at room 

temperature are typically solids, correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. So if one were to use a polysaccharide within the scope 

of claim four, .it would be in the form of a liquid solution 

of a solid polyhydroxy, correct? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. Claim four specifically recites examples of 

polysaccharides as being carriers, correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. If polysaccharides are carriers, and polysaccharides 

are solids at room temperature, and carriers are liquids, 

7 
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the only way a polysaccharide can be a carrier is if it 

dissolved in water, correct? 

A. No, sir. 

4 I -- I differ with your use of dissolved. 

5 Q. Would you agree that a polysaccharide in water is not a 

6 liquid polyhydroxy compound? 

7 A. Say that again, sir. 

8 Q. Would you agree that a polysaccharide dissolved in 

9 water is not a liquid polyhydroxy compound? 

10 

11 

A. 

Q. 

You mean the resulting composition? 

Right? 

12 A. Well, the resulting composition we, I guess, have 

13 agreed is a liquid. 

14 Q. It's your position that as this claims reads, there's 

15 no way that one can use a polysaccharide as a liquid 

16 carrier; i$n't that the bottom line? 

17 

18 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, sir. 

All right. 

19 Let's look at the '176 Patent. 

20 And backing up, that's your position even though 

21 polysaccharides uniformly have more in than 18 carbons, 

22 correct? 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, sir. 

Let's go to Exhibit 176, column seven, line 60 to 68. 

What is dextran? 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

It's a pqlysaccharin. 

And it's a solid at room temperature? 

Yes, sir. 

So in examples four and five, the Patentee is 

5 describing a dextran solution; is that correct? 

6 A. Would you put on, also, the top of the next column 

7 which gives the composition and for the first time mentions 

8 that water is involved here. 

9 

10 

11 

12 
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19 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Sure. 

Now, again your question was ... 

Is this passage referring to dextran in water? 

Dextran with water, yes, sir 

Right. 

And we know that dextran alone is a solid? 

Yes, sir. 

So this use of dextran in water is an example -­

With water, sir. 

It's In water, right? 

THE COURT: No. He said with water. 

20 BY MR. BROWN: 

21 

22 

23 

Q. 

A. 

It's mixed with water, isn't it? 

Yes. 

But I would agree that what you get is dextran with 

24 water. When you say, in water, that somehow implies that it 

25 is in solution. 
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Q. All right. It's dextran mixed with water? 

A. Yes, sir. We can agree n that. 

10 

Q. And the patentee has chosen to give an as an example of 

his invention a mixture of dextran in -- with water used 

with demineralized bone powder, correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. But you would take the position that dextran with water 

is not a liquid solution of_a solid polyhydroxy compound? 

A. Yes, sir, I would take that position. 

Q. So it's your position that examples four and five of 

the '655 Patent are examples that don't fall within the 

scope of the patent, correct? 

A. That's correct, the way I read or construe the patent. 

Q. So you think the patentee chose to give an example that 

isn't within the scope of the claims because of the way the 

term solution is defined, correct? 

MS. CONSALVI: Objection; foundation. 

Are you referring to the pending claims as filed? 

MR. BROWN: I withdraw the question. 

BY MR. BROWN: 

Q. Let's turn to acyclic polyhydric alcohols, Dr. Eisch. 

We're making progress. Maybe not as quickly as I had 

intended and I apologize for that. 

In your testimony, I think you said, and I'm sure 

you'll correct me if I'm wrong, that polyhydric alcohol is 
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equivalent to polyhydroxy? 

A. Yes, sir. 

11 

Q. Would you agree that the term polyol also is synonymous 

with the term polyhydroxy? 

A. Yes, I would so agree. 

Q. Do you agree that a polyol is an alcohol? 

A. Yes. The ending, o-1, is indicative of that. 

Q. Yes. 

And in fact, isn't the origin of polyol from 

polyalcohol? 

A. No. The origin of the o-1 is from the German, uhl, 

which means oil. 

Q. All right. I defer to you on that, Dr. Eisch. 

You refer to Hawley's again for the proposition that 

a polyol is synonymous with the term polyhydric alcohol, 

correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Have you ever heard pluronic referred to as a polyol? 

A. No, I cannot recall seeing that. 

Q. Let's look at trial Exhibit 475. 

Q. Are you familiar with this treatise on Nonionic 

Surfactants by Martin Schick? 

A. Yes, since this legal action. 

Q. Have you examined this reference to see how -- what 

the nature of the discussion of pluronics in this text? 
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A. I recall examining this in the index, especially as to 

the whether in fact this reference, as Osteotech asserts, 

makes synonymous polyoxyalkylene and polyalkylene glycols. 

That's the only context in which I recall. 

Q. As between you and Dr. Schick, would you defer to 

Dr. Schick in terms of knowledge of pluronic? 

A. I don't know the man's background. He's the editor of 

this and, hence, I don't know what his contribution to this 

collection is. 

Q. Let's turn to the ninth page of Exhibit 475, and there, 

we're looking at a chapter by Irving Schmoka (ph.}, correct? 

A. I see his name on the top, yes, and somewhere within 

the chapter; is it not? 

Q. And did you do know that Irving Schmoka was heavily 

involved in the developments of pluronics? 

A. Yes, sir, I recognize that. 

Q. Let's focus on page 313, middle paragraph. And do you 

see there Dr. Schmoka refers to pluronic polyols. 

A. Yes, sir, I see it. 

Q. So that's one example where someone with considerable 

knowledge of pluronics has chosen to refer to pluronic has a 

polyol, correct? 

A. Right. 

But it's at this point I would like to call attention 

to the date of this compilation. It's 1966, 34 years ago. 

12 
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Q. So you think it•s out of date? 

A. It could, conceivably. 

Q. All right. 

Well, then, let•s then look at Exhibit 32. 

MR. BROWN: Backing up, I offer Exhibit 475 into 

evidence. 

THE COURT: Yes. 

BY MR. BROWN: 

Q. You•ve seen Exhibit 32 before, Dr. Eisch? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you understand 

A. I think this -- is this an internal document of GenSci? 

Q. Yes? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And if we focus on the second paragraph of the 

document, do you see that even GenSci refers to pluronic as 

a polyol? 

A. Yes, sir, I see that. 

Q. They refer to, quote, certain blocked copolymer polyols 

exhibit reverse phase properties, end quote? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And they•re referring to pluronic, correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Let•s look at Exhibit 70. 

MR. BROWN: I offer Exhibit 32 into evidence. 

13 
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THE COURT: Yes. 

BY MR. BROWN: 

Q. Do you recognize Exhibit 70, Dr. Eisch? 

A. Yes, I have seen this. And when I examined it, I 

looked in vain for a date. Can you provide that. 

Q. I can't unless it's on the document, itself. 

But is there any question as to what this document 

is, Dr. Eisch? 

14 

A. It's technical data from the BASF Corporation whose 

brochure we gave testimony on earlier in which we could not 

find this term. And so that's why I wonder on such a 

document from the same corporation that now this terminology 

emerges. 

Q. Well, now, your testimony this morning was that you 

couldn't find the term polyalkylene glycol, wasn't it? 

A. Right. 

I looked at the same time. I can now add for 

assurance that I looked for any variant of that, like, 

polyol. 

Q. The title of this document is pluronic polyol gels; is 

that correct? 

A. yes, sir. 

Q. BASF is, as you know, is the manufacture of pluronic? 

A. Yes, sir. 

That's why I'm confused because in a very recent 



15 
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3 1 brochure, the term is not used. And here, you produce a 

2 document where it was used. And I so I wonder about its 

3 date. 

4 Q. All right. 

5 Well, let me see if I we can deal with your concern 

6 about dates. Let's turn to turn to Exhibit 370. 

7 Are you familiar with this treatise on Nonionic 

8 surfactants where Nace is the editor? 

9 A. I believe that was submitted as part of your exhibits; 

10 was it not? 

11 Q. Yes, it was. 

12 A. That is in truth the first time I became acquainted 

13 with it. 

14 Q. Did you review the exhibit? 

15 A. Yes, I did. 

16 Q. And did you understand that this treatise was directed 

17 to Nonionic Surfactants, including polyols? 

18 A. I believe that's my understanding, yes. 

19 Q. And the treatise further discussed pluronics as 

20 particular kind of nonionic surfactant? 

21 A. Yes, sir. 

22 Can you give me a date on this one? 

23 Q. Yes. I think you have the exhibit. The seconds 

24 indicates it's page copyrighted 1996? 

25 A. That's in this pile? 
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Q. It should be? 

A. Which Exhibit number is it? 

Q. Exhibit 60. 

I'm sorry. Exhibit 370. 

Is it the date that you want to look at, Dr. Eisch? 

A. Well, I just wanted to look at the document, too, as 

long as we•re on the subject. 

Q. Sure. Sure. 

A. Okay. I have it. 

But you will note that in the title, in apposition to 

Nonionic Surfactants, it names them correctly by calling 

them polyoxyalkylene block copolymers. And that's the 

designation of greatest prominence on the title page. 

Q. I'm not asking you about the title page, Dr. Eisch. 

A. I know you're not. But I wanted to make that point. 

Q. Have you confirmed that this is a treatise which was 

published in 1996? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. All right. 

Now, let's turn to page 69 of this treatise. 

A. Could you acquaint me with what that chapter is, as a 

start, and who the author of that chapter is? 

Q. I'll try to do that. 

The authors are Benjamin Chu (ph.) and Sue 

Kang (ph) from the Department of Chemistry, State University 

16 
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of New York in Stoneybrook. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Do you happen to know whether they are recognized 

experts in the field of pluronics? 

A. I know the name Benjamin Chu but I don't know his 

stature. 

17 

Q. All right. 

And if we turn then to page 69, do you see that those 

authors refer to pluronic as polyols? 

A. Yes, I see that. 

Q. That is as of 1996? 

A. Yes. 

By all admissions, having no connection with the 

company. 

Q. You know that pluronic has two hydroxyl groups, 

correct? 

A. In most -- yes, pluronic, if it's been initiated with 

sodium hydroxide rather than alkcoxide. 

If it were initiated with alcoxide, it would have a 

maximum of one hydroxyl group. 

Q. So if pluronic has two hydroxyl groups, and pluronic is 

a polyol, you have already acknowledged that a polyol is the 

same as a polyhydric alcohol, correct? 

A. Sir, you're taking the --

Q. Correct or not? 
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18 

A. You're taking this from two academicians rather than 

from the company itself. 

Q. Am I correct, Dr. Eisch? 

A. If you make that assumption 

Q. All right. 

A. -- that these authors are the correct ones to designate 

a pluronic properly. 

Q. And with that assumption that they know what they're 

talking about, and they know how to refer to pluronic; isn't 

it true that a polyhydric alcohol, which is a polyol, and 

pluronic is a polyol, and pluronic has two hydroxyl groups, 

doesn't it follow that a polyhydric alcohol may have as few 

as two hydroxyl groups? 

MS. CONSALVI: Objection; lack of foundation, based 

on the assumption he's asserting. 

THE COURT: He's cross-examining. He can do that. 

If the witness doesn't agree, he can say that. 

BY MR. BROWN: 

Q. Am I correct? 

A. From the the precondition -- let me add a 

pre-condition to it; that these two authors in the use of 

pluronic polyol are more authoritative than the company 

itself. And that is, to me, of small probability. 

Q. So you don't like the way these authors, authors of a 

treatise from 1996, used the term polyol; isn't that it? 
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A. I wonder why they do it --

Q. all right 

A. when name pluronic is out there. 

Q. Well, let's see what GenSci does with pluronic. Let's 

look at Exhibit 31. 

Again, this is a somewhat different form of the 

publication that we were looking at this morning? 

A. Yes, I've seen this. 

Q. You should have a copy in front of you, Dr. Eisch. 

A. Well, I can see it on the screen here. 

Q. Exhibit 31. 

In particular, I want to direct your attention to 

page GSL 000625, which appears to be the sixth page of the 

exhibit. 

MS. CONSALVI: Objection here to the document. He 

said it's a different form than Exhibit 31. 

THE COURT: I'm not following. 

MS. CONSALVI: He's referring to Exhibit 31 but he 

said it was a says different form of that document. 

MR. BROWN: It's not Exhibit 31. 

It's Exhibit -- I'm sorry. It's not Exhibit 35, 

which is what's I used this morning. It's different 31. 

It's a different Exhibit because it has additional pages. 

All right. Counsel has corrected me that the Exhibit 

I previously referred to was 106. 

19 



.. . ·. 

4 1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

20 

All right. 

THE COURT: Instead of? Instead of 31? 

MR. BROWN: I think I said 35 just a minute ago. 

THE COURT: Exhibit 35. 

BY MR. BROWN: 

Q. All right. 

So let's look at --perhaps this is for what I'm 

using it for the same -- the same language, but I won't know 

without checking. 

But let's proceed with this version of the document. 

And you can see, am I correct, Dr. Eisch, that again, 

it indicates that the information was compiled by Dr. Clokie 

and Dr. Coulson. 

A. Yes, sir, that's correct. 

Q. And then if we look at the conclusions to this 

publication, you see in the next to last paragraph a 

reference to pluronic? 

A. Yes, sir, I do. 

Q. And Drs. Clokie and Coulson, when they refer to 

pluronic, refer to it as a polyol, correct? 

A. A no. 

I think my reading of the line that is now boxed in 

is that an extensive drug master file is on file at the 

FDA, and in that file it, is so referred to. That's a 

different thing than saying that they have referred to it as 
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such. 

Q. Well, would you agree with me that this page indicates 

3 or uses the term polyol to describe pluronic? 

4 A. This page does that have that term on it, yes, sir. 

5 Q. I think in your testimony, you indicated if the number 

6 of hydroxyl groups are small in relation to the length of 

7 the molecule, it's not appropriate to call the molecule an 

8 alcohol. Did I fairly state that? 

9 A. It is not appropriate to characterize the functional 

10 group that is in dominance as the alcohol group. 

11 Q. Would you agree that those who use pluronic refer to it 

12 as a polyol? 

13 A. You have shown me some examples of that usage, yes, 

14 sir. 
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Q. And even though -- and they do that even though it 

contains many more ether groups than it does hydroxyl 

groups? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. In connection with formulating your opinions on acyclic 

polyhydric alcohols, did you undertake any kind of review to 

determine if there were any treatises on acyclic -- or 

polyhydric alcohols? 

A. Well, I'm aware of some treatises. I know there are 

treatises on glycerol by itself. That certainly is a 

example of an acyclic polyhydric alcohol. 

21 
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Q. Did you come across any treatises on polyhydric 

alcohols? 

A. I know that there are some, but I did not refer to 

them. 

22 

Q. Do you happen to know whether those -- whether one or 

more of those treatises refer to alcohols containing two and 

only two hydroxyl groups as polyhydric alcohols? 

A. They might well do so. 

Q. Are polyalkylenes a field in which you have 

specialized? 

A. Polyalkylenes? You mean the polymer now, like, 

polyethelene and polypropylene. Yes, I have had a great 

deal of experience in that field. 

Q. And have you with poly -- what you call 

polyoxyalkylenes? 

A. No, I don't have direct experimental experience in 

making such polymers. 

Q. Do you have any publications directed to 

polyoxyalkylenes? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. Do you have any publications that show you have used 

the term polyalkylene glycol consistent with the definition 

of you are now advocating before this Court? 

A. No, sir. 

Q. I think I heard you correctly say that you regard the 
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term polyalkylene glycoll as a pernicious term? 

A. Yes, sir, in that it leads, if you follow its apparent 

prescription for writing a formula, to the wrong formula. 

Q. So it bothers you to hear the term polyalkylene glycol 

applied to block copolymers such as pluronic? 

A. No because already by the use of the words block 

copolymers, one is alerted to the fact that you have two 

different monomers by the word copolymer; and by the block, 

you're alerted to the kind of structure that you would have. 

Q. I'm sorry, Dr. Eisch, that was not quite my question? 

A. All right. 

Q. It bothers you to hear the term polyalkylene glycol 

apply to pluronic which happens to be a block copolymer, 

right? 

A. Yes, sir, that does bother me. 

Q. And its use is pernicious because it's so commonly used 

to describe compounds in a way that in your view of chemical 

terminology is incorrect? 

A. It's just sloppy terminology is what I would impute it 

to. 

Q. Are you aware that the term is commonly used to refer 

to copolymers such as pluronic? 

A. As we went through on the data base this morning, there 

are about 300 patents out there where it is possible tht 

they are used in some instances synonymous with each other. 

23 
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24 

As I said, that was a small percentage of my casting. 

Q. Well, let's look at the compound polyethylene glycol. 

Is that a compound that is commonly referred to by chemists? 

A. Yes, it is. 

Q. And you understand that that compound, polyethylene 

glycol, is also commonly referred to as PEG, P-E-G? 

A. Yes, that's the acronym. 

Q. And you are aware that the term polyethylene glycol -­

that the term poly~thylene glycol is used all the time to 

describe a compound containing repeating carbon carbon 

oxygen units, correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

In other words, a homopolymer of ethyleneoxide, yes. 

Q. Nevertheless, even though you don't refer to the oxygen 

unit, the compound is commony referred to as polyethylene 

glycol, correct? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. So whether we•re talking about polyoxyethylene glycol 

on the one hand or poly ethylene glycol on the other, you 

would understand that one is referring to the same compound? 

A. Yes, sir. 

As with other --

Q. Thank you, Dr. Eisch 

A. terminology --

Q. you've answered the question. 
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And would you it be true that chemists in the 

industry would have no trouble knowing what is being 

referred to when the term polyethylene glycol is used? 

A. Yes, by dentil repetition. 

Q. Now, why don't you don't like the usage of the term 

polyethylene glycol, would you at lease acknowledge that the 

term is frequently used to describe pluronic? 

A. No, would to the agree with that. 

Q. You would not. 

10 Are you aware of a substantial body of patents that 

11 use the term to describe both the -- that are used to 

12 describe both homopolymers and copolymers, such as pluronic? 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

A. 

Q. 

As with what? As with this term, sir? 

Polyethylene glycol? 

A. Yes, I admitted that there might be 298 since 1976 out 

there out of 13,000. 

Q. And Would you acknowledge that there are many patents 

18 that describe pluronic as a polyalkylene glycol? 

19 A. As I said, possibly, 300. 

20 Q. How many of those patents have you looked at, 

21 Dr. Eisch? 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Out of those 300, sir? 

Yes? 

I have read the abstract of every one of them. 

How many of them have you read in their entirety? 
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6 1 A. Not the others -- what I would do after reading the 

2 abstract is to look through the detailed description of the 

3 invention for the terms pluronics and/or polyethylene 

4 glycol. And I did that with, I would say, almost all of 

5 them. 

6 Q. How many did you read in their entirety? 

7 A. None. 

8 But the computer did that for me. 

9 Q. Well, let's talk about that. 

10 For your testimony on polyalkylene glycol, you're 

11 relying on a computer search by Dr. Reese? 

12 A. That's correct. 

13 Q. So is it he, not you, who characterized the patents 

14 that he found in the search? 

15 A. No. He collected and culled out the patents. And I 

16 went through the stack of the 298. 

17 Q. But out of 298, you didn't read in their entirety any 

18 of those, correct? 

19 A. It wasn't necessary to do so. 

20 Q. Now, he says in his report that there are fewer than 

21 that there are only two percent of the patents that 

22 support Osteotech's interpretation of the term? 

23 A. He did not make that calculation, I did. 

24 I took the number 298 over the sum of the occurrences 

25 of pluronic by itself and polyethylene glycol by itself and 
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carne to about 13,000, and then did the division and 

multiplied by a hundred. 

Q. But that number two per cent is a result of doing a 

search based on looking for the term pluronic copolymer and 

polyalkylene glycol? 

A. No, sir, just the term pluronic. That was the search 

term. 

27 

Q. Well, as I read the report, the 289 patents was arrived 

at by doing a search on the term pluronic and the term 

polyalkylene glycol, correct? 

A. Yes, sir, I can agree that. 

Q. All right. 

And then it's from there that a further search was, 

in effect, done to weed it down to six patents; and that 

search was based on using the term pluronic copolymer and 

polyalkylene glycol? 

A. Right. 

But you notice, I did not refer to that or use that 

in my testimony. 

Q. Well, you may not have referred to it or used it, but 

that's how Dr. Reese says that he got to the six per cent? 

A. Six patents. 

Q. He says, in very few patents, six per cent, pluronics 

are described as polyalkylene glycol copolymers, correct? 

A. Let me get to that. Can you direct me to the line? 
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I'm looking here 

Q. It • s tab --

A. I have the QQ tab. But where is it within that? 

Q. Page six, line 12? 

A. Yes, I have it. 

28 

Q. So fast I understand it, what Dr. Reese did was, first, 

he did a search on pluronic and polyalkylene glycol and came 

up with 289 patents, right 

A. Where they both occurred in the same patent, yes, sir. 

Q. Right. 

A. And then, he did a further search to look for a subset 

of those patents that refer to both pluronic coploymers and 

polyalkylene glycols, right? 

A. But that six -- well, let's see. That six patents is 

out of the 280. 

Q. We're getting there. Let's start --

Am I correct as I characterize the searches done by 

Dr. Reese? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. So he did a second search where he searched on pluronic 

copolymers from among the 289 patents, correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And then you took those patents --

A. No, no, I started earlier. I started with the total 

number of hits on pluronic by itself, which is 8,000 
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something, way at the start of the search, sir. 

And then I took the total number of hits of 

29 

3 polyalkylene glycol written as one or two words by itself. 

4 And that was 5,000. 

5 And so then I looked -- used this his number of 279 

6 or 289 where he found both of these terms in the same patent 

7 and then to say where these would be cases where maybe they 

8 might be used synonymously, I took that 279 over 13,000, 

9 times 100, to arrive at my two per cent. 

10 

11 

12 

Q. 

A. 

All right. 

That's not part of Dr. Reese's report? 

No, that's my calculation. But that's simple 

13 arithmetic. 

14 Q. All right. 

15 Now, am I correct, Dr. Eisch, that you contend 

16 pluronic, which has two hydroxyl groups, is not a glycol 

17 because it's so large in relation to the number of hydroxyl 

18 groups? 

19 A. Because of the preponderance of ether linkages over 

20 those two hydroxyl groups. And the preponderance is 125 

21 ether linkages for every one hydroxyl group. 

22 Q. And yet, you're familiar with polyethylene glycol which 

23 in many cases is larger and perhaps much larger than 

24 pluronic, correct? 

25 A. It could be, yes, sir. 
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Q. Nevertheless, chemists refer to polyethylene glycols as 

glycols even though they have many, many more carbon carbon 

oxygen units than they have hydroxy units, correct? 

A. As I say that's not formal nomenclature. 

Q. You don't approve of that nomenclature? 

A. I just recognize it as casual nomenclature. 

Q. In formulating your opinion, Dr. Eisch, on the term 

polyethylene glycol, did you attempt to identify any 

treatises or dictionaries that define the term polyethylene 

glycol? 

A. Yes, I looked in a number of places where these 

polyethylene glycols are discussed. 

Q. Did you happen to look at the Kirk Othmer Enclycopedia 

of Chemical Technology? 

A. Yes. 

MR. BROWN: Please bring up Exhibit 324. 

BY MR. BROWN: 

Q. You recognize that as a reference text for chemists? 

A. Yes,· sir. 

Q. And if we turn to page 489 of Exhibit 324? 

A. May I have your date on this one? Do you have the date 

on which this was published? 

Q. Yes, it's in your book. It was published in 1998? 

A. Okay. Yes, I see it. 

Q. If we go to page 489, the bottom two paragraphs, am I 

::;~;-. 
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correct that the authors of this text refer to polyalkylene 

glycols that are copolymers? 

A. I don't see the word copolymers. 

Q. Well, doesn't it say that polyalkylene glycols are 

usually prepared either from propylene oxide or up to SO 

per cent ethylene oxide? 

31 

A. Right. But that's not a definition. That's a 

prescription of how they are prepared. I wouldn't call that 

definition. 

Q. Well, if only SO per cent is ethylene oxide, wouldn't 

you agree that rest of it has to result in a copolymer? 

A. I would call your attention to the first part of that 

phrase; they are usually prepared either from propylene 

oxide, as a water insoluble type, meaning that that is the 

the homopolymer propylene oxide. 

And then they go on to say, as another preparation, 

that sometimes, they are copolymers of propylene oxide and 

ethylene objection. 

So again, we have a case where we're talking about 

polyalkylene glycols and they go on to distinguish the two 

classes of homopolymers and heter-- copolymers. 

Q. Would you agree that under the term polyalkylene 

glycols, this text indicates that they and include 

copolymers? 

A. Yes, they do. 
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MR. BROWN: Offer Exhibit 324 intp evidence? 

THE COURT: Yes. 

BY MR. BROWN: 

Q. Let•s look at Exhibit 681. This is Ashford•s 

Dictionary of Industrial Chemicals; are you familiar with 

this reference book? 

A. I have not had occasion to use it, no. 

Q. You understand, though, that it•s a reference book 

commonly used by industrial chemists? 

A. If you say so. 

Q. It's copyrighted in 1994? 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Let•s look at page 724 and you see a there a definition 

for polyalkylene glycol. 

Have you had a chance to read that passage, 

Dr. Eisch? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Would you agree with me that these authors have used 

the determine polyalkylene glycol so as to refer to 

copolymers? 

A. In a preparative sense, yes, sir. 

Q. Well, the result of the process they describe is a 

copolymer which they refer to as a polyalkylene glycol, 

correct? 

A. Yes, sir. 

32 
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MR. BROWN: May I approach the witness, your Honor. 

THE COURT: Yes. 

3 BY MR. BROWN: 

4 Q. Dr. Eisch, I'm handing what's been marked as 

5 Exhibit 4002. Take a minute to look at it. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Now, that Exhibit 4002 is pluronic in water, correct? 

Yes, sir, 25 per cent by weight, pluronic. 

And pluronic in water is a dispersion 

It's a colloidal dispersion, yes, sir. 

All right. 

And that exhibit is at room temperature? 

Yes. 

Has that exhibit, or the contents of that exhibit 

14 changed in shape since this morning? 

15 A. Perhaps, you would direct me to the change. It looks 

16 the same to me. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

Q. Well, don't you recall yesterday that all of the 

contents were on the bottom of the container? 

A. They still are. 

Q. So are you saying are you testifying that the 

21 contents of Exhibits 4002 have not changed in shape? 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

and 

Well, certainly, they're still on -- all on the bottom, 

Q. Dr. Eisch, have the contents of Exhibit 4002 changed in 

shape? 

33 
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A. Are you talking about the surface now as I hold it 

upright? 

34 

Q. I'm talking about any aspect of the pluronic water 

mixture, has it changed in shape since you used that exhibit 

yesterday? 

A. Frankly, when I obtained the exhibit, all I noticed was 

that it filled the container. I didn't notice anything 

about anything else. 

Q. Can you determine from looking at the exhibit that in 

fact there has been some flow of the contents down the side 

of the container? 

A. To be honest with you, I did not notice the surface 

when the sample was handed to me yesterday. 

MR. BROWN: All right. 

I have no further questions, Dr. Eisch. 

THE COURT: Do you have anything else? 

MS. CONSALVI: Yes we do. 

MR. BROWN: I'm sorry, your Honor. May I just as a 

housekeeping matter offer a couple more exhibits? 

THE COURT: Yes. 

MR. BROWN: They are Exhibits 710. 

THE COURT: Yes. 

MR. BROWN: Exhibit 176. 

THE COURT: Yes. 

MR. BROWN: Exhibit 70. Exhibit 31. Exhibit 681. 
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1 THE COURT: Yes. 

2 MS. CONSALVI: I don't think 31 is right. 

3 THE COURT: Exhibit 31 is not right. It's 35, isn't 

4 it? 

5 MR. BROWN: Well, we'll take care of that. 

6 THE COURT: There's no reason to sort it out right 

7 now. 

8 MR. BROWN: And in addition, Exhibit 370 was used so 

9 we offer that, at this time. 

10 THE COURT: Yes. 
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